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The Stour Academy Trust )
" (A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report
For the year ended 31 Aug ust 2023

- The Trustees present thelr annual report together with the financial statements and audltors report of the
charitable company for the period:-1st.September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees report and a Dlrectors report under company law.

The Stour Academy Trust continued to operate 8 Primary Academies within the period catering for pupils aged
2-11. 3 in the Canterbury area, 3 in the Swale area and 2'in the Ashford area. As part of these Primary _
Academieswe operate 3 nursery provisions and 3 special needs resource provisions specialising in autism.

. Stury C of E Primary School and Adisham C of E Primary School are both Church of England schools within the
Trust. Therefore the Trust operates Minority Church of England Artrcles of Assocuatlon adopted 17th September
-2019..

At 31st August 2023 there were 2300 puplls a srgmf icant increase of 287 pupils from 2021/22 were on roll
across the organisation. 3 of the 8 schools are going through a period of rapid pupil number expansron due to
need within the local area through local burldlng developments .

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Stour Academy Trustis a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Trustees of The Stour Academy Trust are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law: The charitable company is known as The Stour Academy Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Admlnlstratlve Detauls on page 1.

Members Llablllty

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the chantable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be requnred not exceedlng £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member. .

Trustees’ Indemnities

. A full insurance indemnity is taken out with the Academy Trust’s insurance- company, this is reviewed annually to '
_protect against potential risk and to comply with current ESFA guldance The Trust current[y opts into the
government RPA scheme. .

' Fundraising :

. The Academy engages in fundraising activities for other charities and recognises the provisions of the Charities
(Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016. There is a rigorous process for the collection of funds raised, which
ensures the process for collection conforms to the necessary standards .

The Academy welcomes feedback on |ts fundralsmg approach and seeks to make improvements wherever it
can. Any complaints received in respect of our fundraising activities are taken very seriously and are acted upon
immediately. We are pleased to report that during the year no complaints were received in respect of our

fundraising activity.
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Method of"Recruitment énd Aggointment or Election of Trustees

" Under the revised Articles of Association adopted on 17th September 2019, the number of Trustees shall not-be
less than 5 and shall not be subject to any maximum. The company should have:

. No fewer than five Trustees, appointed under Articles 50 and 50A combined

« -+ Aminimum of 2 Parent Trustees elected or appointed under Articles 53-56 in the event that no Local
Governing Bodies are established under Article 100(a) )

«  The Members shall appoint by ordinary resolution a minimum of three Trustees.

. The Diocesan Corporate Member shall appoint at least two (and in its absolute discretion may appoint

more than two) Trustees provided where the Academies comprise only schools that had been Community
Schools and Voluntary Controlled schools as defined by the Education Acts the total number of Trustees '
appointed under this Article shall not exceed 25% of the total number of Trustees.

. The total number of Trustees, including the Chief Executive Officer, if they so choose to act as Trustees

' under Article 57 who are employees of the Company shall not exceed one third of the total number of
Trustees.

As of 31st August 2023, the Board eomprised of 10 Trustees, including the CEO. All Board meetings were
attended by the COO, where appropriate. The Boards skills cover a wide range of areas including financial,
educational management, business management, legal and technology.

Policies and Procedures Adepted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

© Within the year.a number of new Trustees were appointed following a successful recruitment campaign lead by
the COO. All potential new Trustees are subject to a stringent interview process. This process is overseen by the
Members who have the responsibility for appointing to The Board. The interview panel is made up of Members.

The Trust has developed a training induction plan for all new Trustees and a CPD package for all new and

existing Trustees. This is further personalised by identifying Trustees weaknesses identified through skills audits

e g snme new Trustees required additional 'frammg in exclision panels and finances on tnp of the 'standard CPN
: ,package we offer Trustees.

Once a Trustee has been appointed and completed all safeguarding and security checks, they are registered
with a Trust email address and have access to all Governance related documentation. The Trust plans to
undertake a full governance review in 2023-24, which will have oversnght on these procedures to check for areas
for development. .

’ Emgloyee engagement

The Trust and Trustees actively engage with employees on a rangeof areas through staff voice, surveys and
operating a culture in which employees really do have a voice. We warked further to develop smart, time saving
systems to cut our unnecessary tasks through the use of technology. .

During the yeer the Trust has established a number of working parties when policies are due to be renewed. Eg
the Trust developed a writing working party to undertake research into writing teaching methods and practices
prior to changing policy and a phased roll out of new teaching methods. .

Engagement with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders

The Trust ensures that business relationships with suppliers, customers and other key stakeholders are
developed and maintained in a positive way that supports a mutually beneficial partnership. All suppliers are
treated with fairness and equality; strict procurement procedures are followed to avoid undue bias or favouritism;
payments -are made to suppliers within agreed terms and relationships developed with suppliers to enhance the
" service received. During the period the Trust further expanded these engagement levels with suppliers by
_ hosting a number of video call meetings with supphers to discuss projects and services.
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The Stour Academy Trust ;
(A company limited by guarantee) '

Trustees' report (continued) -
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Building on our commitment to dynamic parent engagement this. year has seen a focused effort in soliciting
parental feedback on our communication methods. We have actively sought out and valued parent opinions
through various.channels, including online surveys and forums. This collaborative approach has been
instrumental in shaping our future communication stratégies. By analysing and responding to this feedback,
we're ensuring that our communication is not only effective but also resonates with the needs and preferences of
our parent commumty fostering a more connected and responsrve educational environment.

Staff communication is at an all-time high alongside staff engagement. Due to the expansion of our digital vision
for staff and a dedicated communication plan our staff feel more in the know than ever before. The Trust
continues to provide extensive training for all staff to ensure that the technology is accessible to all and improving
communication. . '

" Organisational Structure

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day management of the academies to the Chief Executive
Officer (CEOQ). The role of the CEOQ is setting the.strategy and vision of the Trust, buildings its culture and the
creation and development of teams that work both centrally as well as those providing services across the Trust.
The CEO is responsible for capital allocation. .

The Board holds the CEO to account. The CEO holds the central team to account.
The relationship between the Board and the CEO is underpinned by a shared vision-and values.

The monitoring of the Trust development plan and key priorities is the responsibility of the Board, supported by
CEO and School Improvement Partners.

Within each academy there is a Headteacher.
The CEO is the Accounting Officer.
"~ The Key Management Personnel (which forms the central team) within the year 2022-23 ié shown below:

- CEO
Chief Operating Officer (whom acts as CFO)
School improvement Partner x 2
Director of HR — This role ceased 31st October 2022 and the COO picking up additional HR duties
Director of Marketing and Communications

e & o & @

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Board oversees the pay and rerﬁuneration of the CEO and COO through its dedicated Pay Committee. The
performance management of the CEQ is undertaken by the Board with external support and the remaining Key
Management Personnel by the CEO/COO with input from the Board. ,

Within the year 2021-22 the Board commissioned é thorough independent pay and rewards scheme review for
.the CEO/CQO. This scheme came into effect 1st September 2022 and continued during this accounting period.

This p|an enables budget planning to take place for a period of 3 years along with ensuring a transparent and fair
process has been adopted in line with ESFA best practice.

Related Parties and other Cohnecfed Charities and Organisations

The Stour Academy Trust acts as a sponsor supporting a number of academies through collaborative working
across Kent. The Trust opened another Free School, Chilmington Green Primary School in September 2018 .
housed in temporary accommodation prior to the completion of a new build in November 2021. This building
became a donated asset to the Trust during the financial year 2022-23 and is recognised within these accounts.

Page 5




The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
" For the year ended 31 August 2023

Obiects

The objects of the Trust are to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and .
developing academies which shall offer a broad, balanced curriculum and which shall include:

0} Academles other than those designated Church of England whether wnth or without deSIgnated
character; and

@iy  Church of England academies designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the -
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation .
to arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship and in having regard to any advice and
followmg any directives issued by the Diocesan Board of Education

“Butin relatlon to each of the academles to recognlse and support their indlwdual ethos, whether or not

deS|gnated Church of England
{

Providing recreatlonal and leisure facilities in the interests of somal welfare for the inhabitants of the area of
benefit especially those who have need of such facilities by reason of youth, age, infirmity or disablement,
poverty or social and economic circumstances, provided that, such recreational and leisure time facilities shall
not be provided by the company at an academy designated with @ Church-of England rellglous character except
. by way of the operatmg of a trading company.

Objectives and Aims

2022-23 saw The Stour ACademy.Trust fully launching its extensive modern vision for a 21st Century education
system, following the previous year being a staggered approach. Our core aim for the year being -all academies
across the Trust being fully immersed in the strategies and practices of 21st Century learning. '

3 of our schools continued to be accredited Microsoft Showcase schools with the aim to expand this during the
year 2022-23. The remaining 5 all being accepted on the incubator pathway in July 2023. This is a Trust wide
achievement which has required buy in from all stakeholders and a significant level of CPD and time. This
accreditation is global involving 48 countries and there are less than-400 schools globally with this status. We
would become a handful of Trusts worldwide to hold this organisation wide accreditation.

‘ Wlth the reintroduction of full Ofsted processes followmg lots of COVID-19 periods of non-inspection, our core
aim for 2022-23 was to further enhance our Ofsted portfollo

Chllmlngton Green anary School receiving its first |nspectlon since opening. Lansdowne Primary School
receiving its second under the Trust, and Rlchmond Academy (now Primary School) recelvmg its first ever Good
Ofsted gradmg S .

e

0b|ect|ves, Strategles and Actlvmes

As detalled above, The Stour Academy Trust recognises that our education system needs to quickly and more
radically shift to close equity gaps and to better prepare our young people for the 21st century. We are
transforming our schools from passive forms of learning focused on direct instruction and memorisation, by
moving towards interactive methods that promote the critical and mdlwdual thinking needed in today’s

‘ lnnovatlon driven economy.

To deliver these aims and objectives all academles develop a detailed academy development plan to effectively
plan how these aims and objectives will be met. The Stour Academy Trust develops a central development plan
which provides the cornerstones to the direction of these personalise school plans These Trust development
priorities will help us achieve our overall aims and objectlves
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)

.

For the year ended 31 August 2023

-Our core objectives in 2022-23 were to:

Create a culture of empowered leaders where leaders at all levels have impact in their roles and are
driven by the vision and values of the Trust

‘Ensure that organisational structures and processes are efficient, ambmous and lnnovatlve

Foster an environment of learning and growth. through the innovative use of technologies using Microsoft .

. solutions, and other software where appropriate

Schools developing an aspect of the vision as a specialism
Developing an ambitious pedagogy for SEND and inclusive environments
Communicate the Trusts central service offer to both existing and prospective. schools

' To Develop a Trauma School Approach which offers sustainable change for behavnour

Improved outcomes in reading and writing

’Publlc Benefit

The Trustees can confirm the objectives and activities of the Trust providé identifiable benefits, namely _
educational, which are in pursuance of thé aims of the Trust. The Trustees confirm that they have complied with
their duty to have regard to the guidance on public benefit as published by the Charity Commission.
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance

Ofsted
During the period 2022-23 3 Trust academies underwent Ofsted inspections. The following outcomes were

awarded: :

s

I . Richmond Primary School

Overall effectivenéss Requires Improvement . ‘ Good
The quality of educatibn ‘Requires Improvément Good
| Behaviour and attitudes’ - Requires Improvement - | Good
Personal development ‘Requires Improvement Good
Leadership and management - Good " .’} Good
.Early years provision ) Requires Improvement Good

R——

Lansdowne Primary School

Sep-17 4 Dec-22
Overall effectiveneés . | Good ‘ A Good
Tﬁe quality of education . Good ’ Good
"Behaviour and attitudes Good . : Outstanding
Personal aevelopment . Good Outstanding
Leadership and management - Outstaﬁding Outstanding
Early years provi§ion : Outstanding Outstanding

Chilmington Green Primary School
Opened Sept 2018 — No previous inspection

| Dec-22
Overall effectiveness Good . ’

The quality of education - 1 Good
Behaviour and attitudes a Good
Personal development Good
Leadership and management .| Good
Early years provision : Outstanding
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"The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

- Trustees’ report (6ontinued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023
SIAMS -

During the penod 2022-23 Sturry Chuch of England Primary . School underwent a SIAMS lnspectlon An overall
grade of “Good” was achieved.

The Stour Academy Trust Data 2022-23

The Stour Academy Trust continues to make good progress in terms of outcomes; with 7/8 of our schools in line
with KS2 national average for combined and improved KS1 outcomes for writing this year. Richmond Academy
is still below KS2 National for combined outcomes, but we. have increased capacity in the School lmprovement
.Team this academic year to support this.

Year 6 - National Adisham | Chilmington | Finberry Lansdowne | Sturry Thistle | Richmond Water

'2022-2023 . ‘Green ’ X Hilt - | Meadows
KS2 |
reading .
exp+ 73% 89% 74% S0% 83% 85% 70% . 41% 82%
KS2 writing ) : . . 1. )
exp+ 71% 89% - 83% 87% 87% 97% 63% 68% 71%
KS2 maths ' ’ . . .o
exp+ 73% 89% C74% | 87% 87% 83% 61% 43% " 65%
Ks2 ' E -
combined . . .
exp+ 59% © 89% 65% 80% - 82% 83% 59% T 27% 59%

P_r‘dgress Measures 2022-23 )
Adisham | Chilmington Finberr\; tansdowne Sturry. Thistle Richmond Water
Year 6 ) ‘| Green . ' Hill, ‘| Meadows
Reading 1.3 38 |21 28 08 .28 39 |25
Writing ‘ '-1.7 | 1.0 -1.1 3.5 2.2 2.3 08 .  |os '
Maths 28 " |-15 o 27 19 50 5.1 1.6
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 The Stoquc‘ademy Trust .
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Section 172(1) Statement

All Trustees of The Stour Academy Trust carefully consider all decisions made to promote the short and long
term success of the Trust and for the benefit of its employees and pupils (members) by:

The Trust has good delegation of duties and responsibilities to ensure that long term risks and concemns are
planned for and addressed. This is achieved by ensuring plans and policies are in place, reviewed regularly and
shared with the appropriate bodies in line with regulations and best practice.. The Trust has a strategic growth

- plan which was developed in 2021-22, which plans for Trust growth and strengthenlng our.current stakeholders
Within the year significant internal growth has taken place i in line with this growth plan.

The Trust continues to aim to be an ‘employer of choice’ and has a number of strategies in place which take in to
account the interests of all employees. In particular our new vision for education cuts out a number of
unnecessary tasks and simplifies others to ensure ali tasks have a purpose thus improving employee/ employer
relations and wellbeing. : '

The Trust promotes strong relationships with all stakeholders, including business relationships with its suppliers.
We undertake regular reviews with current and potential businesses to ensure value for money and positive
workmg relationships. .

The Trusts key objective is to provide a good quality of education to children within the local community and
. modemise education. We aim for our schools to be actively engaged with the local communities and ensure they
- learn about the local diverse environments they live within. [t is essential that the Trust recognlses the
communmes we serve and consider these communities in any decisions we make. .

The need to act fairly is evident in policies and practice and endorsed by the Trustees and Trust Leaders,
alongside ensuring employees have a voice and thése policies and practices are achievable:

Key Performance Indicators

——

The Trusteés identified the following performance indicators for the Trust in 2022-23;

. Ensunng funds were targeted at supporting lost learning through previous years COVID—19 lockdowns ‘
through catch up and recovery funds ,

. Percentage of income received from ESFA spent on teaching staff

. Percentage of income received from ESFA spent on total staffing costs

« . Ensuring financial stability for the.future of the Trust

. Ensuring improved gradings of statutory inspections

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
- continues to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regardmg the
adoptlon of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Fmancnal Review

In this financial period (1st September 2022 to 31st August 2023), the Academy Trust received the majority of its,
funding from the ESFA, however significant investment was also received from Kent County Councnl in which
some schools are growing in pupil PAN size.

 Additional ring-fenced grants such as PE, Pupil Premlum UIFSM and Teacher Pay Grants were also received
during the year from the ESFA. The Trust prides itself.on ensuring that these grants are spent to ensure lmpact
and reducing the gap for our underserved pupils where possible. .
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.The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

In addition during the S/ear a number of post COVID-18 support grants to enhance educational outcomes from
--leaming lost during periods of COVID-19 absence were awarded by the ESFA which enabled the Trustto .
provrde addmonal support to lost pupil learning. .

Trust reserves allow for our unique educational vision to be fully embraced and implemented. The targeted use
of these funds enables us to create 21st Century environments for learning and allows us to make significant
investments in technology. All staff and KS2 pupils across the Trust now have a 1:1 device.

~ The Trust continued to operate a policy of “top slicing” each academy to provide a range: of services. These
funds are held within the central account. The Board of Trustees feel this top slicing achieves best value for )
money for aII Trust schools. A comprehenslve breakdown of this “top shcmg is detailed later in these accounts

. Wlthm the penod the COQO continued to support a number of MATSs and SATs with financial sustamabmty and
growth planning, alongside speaklng at a number of local and national conferences.

-. Reserves Policy

The Trustees have given consideration to a reserves policy, with the aim of creatlng reserves for future growth of -
- the Trust. The level of reserves should never be in deficit.

- Each year the Trustees review the resource requirements and income that is forecast for the next 3 years
through a detailed budget plan which is formulated, challenged and approved before submitting to the ESFA. .

Investment Policy

There are no mvestments held beyond cash deposits retained in Academy Trust bank accounts The Trust
Investment Policy was reviewed in September 2022.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

‘Dunng the period there were 3 signifi cant areas of risk identified:

. The rising costs of energy prowsrons for Trust facilities
. Increases to the “cost of living” for everyday items e.g. school meals
. The uncertainty of teacher pay rises ongoing at the period-end and the grants that would be awarded to

support any increases
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

-Streamlined Enerqy and Carbon Reportinq

See below current emissions from 2022-23, which does see a significant decrease on previous years due to our
efforts to improve our carbon footprint including — new boilers, electrical upgrades and a higher reliance on
virtual meetings  where possible. During 2022-23 we have also introduced an internal digital reporting system to
ensure accuracy. Our footprint will further reduce by the successful win of a schools rebuild programme
appllcatlon for Water Meadows Primary School.”

oil - Gas Electricity | Cars | Total

| kg COe 38038.77622 | 27,619 83,399 | 5,380 154436.306
kg CO; 37891.35022 27,563 82,547 [ 5,360 | 153361.1162

As a Trust we have opted to measure these emissions on a per pupil basis (on roll 2300):

. Total Emissions Per Pupil
1 kg COze -154436.306 _ 67.15
kg CO, 153361.1162 66.68

Plans for Future Periods
_Asan organisafioh our aims for 2023-24 are as follows:

+ . Ensure Thistle Hill Academy improves its Ofsted grading through inspection
Apply-for upcoming Kent Free School to increase Trust to 9 schools by 2025/26
Develop ways to share our 21st Century vision for education across the sector
Undertake a full governance review to identify governance strengths and areas for development
Implement a new speech and language approach to ensure every child is able to communicate

. Increase the capacity of our school improvement services by the introduction of a School Improvement
Partner focussed on inclusion and inclusive classrooms
Continue to embed new reading and writing practices within lessons

. Re-Align, Implement & Develop career pathways for all roles

. Gain Microsoft Showcase status for all 8 of our academies

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others

The Trust does not hold any funds on. behalf of others. -

Employees and disabled persons

The Stour Academy Trust regularly reviews its Trust Accessibility Policies to ensure fair access to all employees
including those registered as a disabled person. Occupational Health checks take place for all new employees to
inform the Trust to any provisions that should be put in place to support employees. In addition, current -
employees may also be referred to Occupational Health after periods of absences to allow the Trust to continue
to support the employee. All staff have aCCess to annual on-site health checks as well.as a telephone counselling

service.
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. The Stour Academy Trust . -
(A company limited by guarantee)

-
~

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Political donations ; o

No political donations have taken place.

Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware: '

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable compaan auditor is unaware

e the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit mformatlon and to establish that the auditor is aware of the information. :

The auditor, Kreston Reeves LLP, has lndlcated its willingness to contlnue in office. The Trustees will propose a
' motlon re-appointing the audctor at a ‘meeting of the Members.

The Trustees' repot, mcorporatlng a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees as the
company directors, on : and signed on its behalf by:
[~ Dacembaf 202,3

M&\Aﬁm

Mrs F Trigwell o )
Chair of Trustees ) '
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Stour Aé:ademy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and-otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

-The Board of Trustees has delegated the day?to?day responsibility to the Chief Executtve Officer as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding

. agreement between The Stour Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reportmg to the governmg body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here sup.pleme'nts'that which is described in the Trustees" Report and in
the Statement of Trustee's responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year. ~
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

' No of " No

Forename | Surname. Governing Role Meetings | attended
Fiona . Trigwell Director/Chair of the Board 6 6
Teejay ’ Singh Director 6 1 .
Daniel Moore. Director 6 3
Rachael” Howell CEOQ/Director .6 6 -
Vieki Standing Director/Vice Chair- 6 .5

| Sarah Wraight Parent Director ~ Terminated 25% April 2023 4 3
Olatunde | Aje Parent Director —Terminated 16* June 2023 4 2
Natalie Ralph i Director — Commenced 21 November 2022 - 4 3
Victoria Richmond Director — Commenced 2" March 2023 3 -3
Jovy- | Sargeant - | Director — Commenced 30™ March 2023 2 2
Joseph Anthony Parent Director —Commenced 16t June 2023 2 2
Rakel Eskeu Parent Director — Commenced 9th June 2023 2 2

"In addition to full board meetmgs the Trust has the following active sub-commtttees and encourages all Directors
to undertake academy visits.

.. Curriculum and Standards Commiﬁee, .

. Church Schools Committee -
. Audit and Finance Committee
» . Pay Committee

Members of the Trust meet 3 tlmes per year, plus 1 AGM to effectively hold the board to account and have a

good understanding of trust activities.

The Chair of the Board Mrs F Trigwell, was re-elected Chair in September 2022 Mrs Trigwell's career in

education, mainly in areas of significant social deprivation, has enabled The Board to consistently and thoroughly :

drive forward standards.
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued) -

Review of value for money

As Acco[.mting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for enSun‘ng that the Aéademy Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how The Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money -
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
|ncludmg the use of benchmarkmg data where approprlate .

‘ The Accountlng Officer supported by the COO for the Academy Trust has delivered lmproved value for money
during the year a few examples being:

. Makmg significant savings in IT services and broadband provisions leading to a significant reinvestment in

digital technology

. Planning for the introduction of our own internal supply agency to reduce costs in 2023-24

« " Anumber of refurbishment and replacement projects have also taken place which will see a reduction in
energy costs and our-carbon footprint alongside this

. Undertaking extensive exercises to reduce costs and improve the quality of therapeutic services e.g..
speech and language, occupational therapy and educational psychology contractors

. Ensuring uniform procurement is in line wﬂh DFE guidance and provides value for money for parents

across the Trust
The purpose of the system of internal 6ontrol

The system of internal controt is designed to manage nsk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on?going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to-the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the

. likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Stour Academy Trust for
the period 1st September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on?going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1st September 2022 to 31 August 2023
“and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed
by the Board of Trustees. :

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes: .

. compréhensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

. regular reviews by the Trustees of reports which.indicate financial performance against the forecasts and
of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

. delegation of authority and segregation of dutles

. ndentuf cation and management of risks.’
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The Stour Academy Trust '
(A company limited by guarantee)A

Governance Statement (continued)

The ris'k and control framework (continued) 4

The Board of Trustees appointed SBM Services as the mternal audrtor in 2022-23 whom undertook a ngorous
* process of 8 days internal auditing over the period.

The internal auditors role includes giving advice on financial matters and performlng a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financial systems. In partlcular the checks carried out in the current period included:

. testmg of payroll systems

testing of purchase systems including Cl'edltOTS
testing of income

testing of accountmg systems and processes
testing of management account reporting and VAT
. testing of control account/bank reconciliations |

" e e o

On a quarterly basis, the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of control and
on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities. The internal auditor carried out all work as
per the schedule of planned work and presented to the Audit and Finance Committee :

Review of effectiveness i .

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed-by: )

. the work of the internal auditor

. the work of the external auditor; i

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development

- and mamtenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has béen advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of intemal
control by the Board of Trustees and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system isin place : .

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on ’l :De.(.uv\&; - Zou 2,023 and signed on
their behalf by: .

\

Mrs F Trigwell 4 ' Miss R Howell
Chair of Trustees . o -Accounting Officer
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The Stour Academy Trust .
(A company li_mited by guarantee)

‘Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of The Stour Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy ‘

" Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency. (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety-and management,
under the funding agreement between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management. -

'| confirm that 1 and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material |Pregular or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of fundlng
under the Academy Trust s funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022. .

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non- compllance have been discovered

to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement these will be notified to the-Board of
Trustees and ESFA. :

Miss R Howell
Accounting Officer-
Date: 12 December 2023
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The Stour Academy Trust -
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities
For the year ended 31 August 2023

" The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction. published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financiai statements for each financial year. Under company law,
. the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
requnred to:

. select sunable accountmg pollcres and then apply them consnstently,
. " observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction
- 2022 to 2023; :
. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; ‘
T e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basns unless iti is mappropnate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position .of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act .
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking

~ reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other lrregularmes

The Trustees are responsible .for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial - -
management: They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended. .

The Trustees are responsible for the rnaintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in. other jurisdictions. .

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:
A -
Zr\ra,\aj(-:»«@mrw

Mrs F L Trigwell } I
Chair of Trustees ‘

Date: , A . ' ' o
(= :Decémber 2023
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

‘Independent’auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Stour ACaderrry Trust

Opinion

‘We have audited the financial statements of The Stour Academy Trust (the 'academy trust') for the year ended
31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash
flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skrlls Funding Agency. .

In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the'Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
-incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expendrture for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance wrth United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
Practice; and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requrrements of the Companles Act 2006, the Charities SORP

* 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Educatlon and Skills Funding
Agency. .

Basis for opmlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
- law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, -
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relati‘ng to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our resporisibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees wrth respect to gorng concern are descnbed in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in.doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial:
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothmg to report in this regard
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Tne Stour_Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) -

Independent audltors Report on the fmanclal statements to the Members of The Stour Academy Trust
(continued) - R

Opmlon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

" In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e  the lnformatlon glven in the Trustees' report mcludmg the Strateglc report for the financial year for which
. thefinancial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. _
¢ theTrustees' report and the Strateglc report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requ:rements
i Matters on which we are required to report by exception .

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified-material mlsstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: .

. adequate accountlng records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been

. received from branches not visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountmg records and returns; or
e - certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or .

e . we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

- As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsnbllmes the Trustees (who are also the dlrectors of .
the-Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsuble for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. : v

In prepanng the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

- concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operatlons or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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: _The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Stour Academy Trust
{continued)

’

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

lrregulantles including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responSIblImes outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable-of detectmg wregulantnes including fraud is
detalled below: :

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector as a whole, and through discussion with the
Trustees and other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with Jaws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety and
employment law. We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material éffect on the
financial statements. We aiso considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation
of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies
Accounts Direction, Academies Financial Handbook, taxation and pension legislation. We communicated
identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to: posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue of reduce expenditure, management bias in
accounting estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and
buildings and revenue and noncompliance with financial management and govermance requirements which are
consistent with the obligations of pubhc funded bodies. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team
included:

¢ Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations (including health and safety) and fraud, and review of the reports made by
management and internal audit; and

 Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and

e Consideration of income streams, completeness of i mcome and compliance wuth the obligations of funders
including the ESFA; and

¢ Testing of internal controls procedures relating-to expendlture potentially more susceptible to fraud and other
irregularities including the misuse of publlc fundmg in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card
expenditure; and

e Review of cash and credit card expenditure to conf irm no evidence of personal benefit; and -

e Checking and reperforming the reconciliation of key control accounts; and

o Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships, including re!ated party -
transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud; and

o Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to identify
any previously undisclosed transactions with related parties outside the normal course of business; and .

« Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authorities; and

+ Review of internal controls and physical inspection of tangible assets susceptible to fraud or ir'reg_ularity; and
‘Review of corporate governance arrangements; and

« Review of significant and unusual transactions and evaluation of the undenrlying financial ratlonale supporting
the transactions; and

"~ » ldentifying and testing journal entnes in particular any manual entries made at the year end for financial

statement preparation.
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Stour Academy Trust
(continued) . ,

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including

. those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
_reflected in the financial statements, as'we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, coliusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional.
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: '

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is-
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion of the effectiveness
of the Academy Trust's intermal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
_estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees. -
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions .
that may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we .
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,.to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Academy Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentatlon structure and content of the financial statements including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactlons and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemnal control that we
identify during our audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part' 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them-in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Wieien Cee ved L

Robert Sellers FCCA (Senior statutory audltor)
for and on behalf of

Kreston Reeves LLP

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Canterbury

Date: 13 December 2023
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The Stour Academy Trust ‘
(A company limited by guarantee)

»Independent Reportlng Accountant's Assurance. Report on Regulanty to The Stour Academy Trust and
the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In"accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 17 October 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skifls Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to

2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by The Stour Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have -
been appliedto the purposes identified by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govem them. : .

This report is made solely to The Stour Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
-engagement letter. Our work has beén undertaken so that we might state to The Stour Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other. purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
. by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Stour Academy Trust and ESFA for
our work, for this report or for the conclusion we have formed ) '

Respectlve responsibilities of The Stour Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reportmg
accountant

The accountrng officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Stour Academy Trust's funding agreement
. with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 August 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
rntended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them:

Our responsnbrlrtles for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom-by our professron s ethical

. guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August- 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament. or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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The Stour Academy Trust
* (A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant‘s -Assurance Report on Regularlty to The Stour Academy Trust and
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined i m our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
~ explanations in order to prowde us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negatlve conclusion on
" regularity. .

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement mcludes exammatlon on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propnety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

Work undertaken
The work undertaken to draw to our cbnclusion includes:

- . Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the fundmg agreement

- Reviewed that grants have been applied for the purposes intended

- Confirmed that mternal control procedures exist relating to expenditure mcurred of cash and credit
cards

- Confirmed items claimed on cash and credit cards are not for personal benefit

- Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related parties

- Reviewed minutes of Governing Body minutes for declaration of interests

- Considered whether other income activities are permitted within the Academy Trust‘s charitable objects

- Considered if borrowing agreements, including leases, have been made in accordance with the

. Academies Trust Handbook

- . Confirmed that procurement and tendering procedures exist relating to expendlture and have been

complied with. .

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been -

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them

Cor ]

l/qg e~ (&“_ veld Lo

Kreston Reeves LLP
Reporting Accountant

Date: 13 December 2023
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The Stour Academy Trust:
(A company limited by guarantee)

. Statement of fmanclal activities (mcorporatmg income and expenditure account)

For the year ended 31 August 2023

Restricted

fquard : 477,272

. Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total " Total
A funds funds funds - funds " funds .
. 2023 . 2023 2023. 2023 - 2022
Note . £ £ £ £ £
Income from: ‘ A
Donations and capital ) _ s
" grants 3 44,472 - " 8,022,310 8,066,782 190,756
Other trading activities 5 . "423,075 .- - ' 423,075 585,474 .
Charitable activities 4 - 13,548,761 - " 13,548,761 12,230,039
Total income - o . ° ' 467,547 13,548,761 8,022,310 22,038,618. 13,016,269
Expenditure on: _ ) . '
‘Charitable activities 6 7,282 14,004,722 881,493 14,893,497 14,559,436
Total expenditure : 7,282 14,004,722 881,493 14,893,497 V 14,559,436
Net .
income/(expenditure) 460,265 (455,961) 7,140,817 - 7,145,121 (1,543,167)
Transfers between - ' o _ ' ‘ '
funds ' 15 . (326,136) 286,948 39,188. - -
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised : . v
+ gains/(losses) . . 134,129 (169,013) 7,180,005 7,145,121 (1,543,167)
Other recognised . A
gains/(losses):
Actuarial (losses)/gains
-on defined benefit . A
pension schemes 21 (548,000) © . 1,580,000 - 1,032,000 - 6,437,000
Net movement in : .
funds ) (413,871) 1,410,987 7,180,005 8,177,121 - 4,893,833
Reconciliation of
funds: )
Total funds brought o
forward . 891,143 (319,174) 29,951,252 30,523,221°. 25,629,388
Net movement in funds - (413,871) 1,410,987 7,180,005 8,177,121 4,893,833
Total funds carried
1,091,813 37,131,257 38,700,342 30,523,221

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 28 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

t
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The Stour Académy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 08179242

Balance sheet A
As at 31 August 2023

Fixed assets -

Tangible assets
Current assets

Debtors
- Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: émounts falling due within one
year

.N'et current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pensnon asset/
liability .

Defined beneﬁt pension, scheme asset/
habllrty

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds: ‘

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

- Note

C12

13

14

21

15
15

15
15

15
15

2023

£

37,131,257
. 360,236
1,626,505
1,986,741
(417,656)

1,569,085

38,700,342

38,700,342

38,700,342
37,131,257
543,813
37,675,070

37,675,070

1,025,272

38,700,342

2022

£

29,951,252
253,514
1,538,140
1,791,654
(319,685)

1,471,969

31,423,221.

31,423,221

(900,000)
A29,/951,252
580,826
30,532,078
(900,000)

20.632,078

891,143

30.523.221 -

The financial statements on pages 25 to 56 were approved and authorised for i issue by the Trustees and are

signed on their behalf by:

Ww@&
Mrs F L Trigwell
Chair of Trustees

Date:

[ QécemLar 2023

The notes on pages 28 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Cash ﬁows from operatiné activities |

" Net cash provided b)'/- operating agtivities

(_:ash-flows from investin§ activities g

Change in cash and cash equiVéIeﬁts'in the year

Césﬁ and cash equivalents ét the-beginning of the year -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of fhe year

. The notes on pages 28 to 56 forrh part of these financial statements

4

Page 27

2023 .

. 2022
‘ .Note £ £
17 139,819. 207,360
g ké1,454) (179,094)
' 88,365 28,266
1,638,140 1,509,874
+19, 20 .1,525,595 1,538,140




The Stour Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2023

1.

Accounting policies

The Stour Academy Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity
incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Park View, Sturry, Canterbury, CT2 ONR.
The Academy Trust's main objective is to advance for the public benefit of education in the United
Kingdom, in particular without prejudice to the gencrality of the forgoing by cstablishing, maintaining,
managing and developing Academies within the Trust

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,

" except where noted), judgments and-key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

11

Basis of preparation of financial statements 4

The financial statements of the Academy Trust which is a public benefit entlty under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in. accordance with the Financial Reportmg

‘Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by

Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102)-(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companles Act 2006.

The Stour Academy Trust meets the definition of a publié benefit entity under FRS 102.

The academy frust's functional and presentational currency is Pound Sterling.

' ,~The academy trust's financial statements are presented to the nearest p_ound;

1.2

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate i.e. whether there are any

material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of autherisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence

’ for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to

continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

1.4

Income

All mcommg resources are recogmsed when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants ‘
Grants are included in the Statement of financial actlvmes on a receivable basis. The balance of

- income received for specific purposes but not experided during the period is shown in the relevant

funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional-entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related condmons are met. Where
entrtlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued .

General Annual Grant is recogmsed in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from mcome and recognised as
a liability. .

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflécted in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entrtlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended. .

: Donatlons

Donations are recognised on a receivable basrs (where there are no performance-related condmons)
where the receipt is probable and the arhount can be reliably measured.

Transfer of existing academies mto the Academy Trust . :

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Academy
Trust, the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet at the
point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Academy Trust. An equal amount of

_income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the Academy Trust wrthm 'Income

from Donatlons and Capital Grants' to the net assets acquired.

Donated fixed assets (excluding tra_nsfers on conversion or into the Academy Trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost-of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
‘recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants’ and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic |lfe in accordance
with the Academy Trust's accounting policiés.

Expenditure ) ' f

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be meastired reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contributé to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of trme spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.
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1.

" Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Expenditure (continued)

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
¢

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

1.6

1.6

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amouht can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normally upon notrﬁcatlon of the interest paid or payable by the
lnstltutlon with whom the funds are dep05|ted :

Taxation

"+ The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance

1.7

Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of ‘a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax-Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusuvely to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Premises occupied under a licence by church academies

The Incumbent and Churchwardens of the Parish of Sturry in the Diocese’of Canterbury and the
Rector and Churchwardens of the Parish of Adisham own the legal titles of land and freehold
property for the church academies the Trust operate. In these circumstances, the Academy Trust's
rights over the premises are considered to meet the definition of an asset as the Academy Trust has

. control over the premises. Accordingly the Academy Trust recognises these premises as a fixed

asset on its balance sheet. There are no formal leases in place and The Incumbent and
Churchwardens of the Parish of Sturry in the Diocese of Canterbury and the Rector and
Churchwardens of the Parish of Adisham do not charge any rent for the use of these properties.
Premises leased from local authorities

Land, buildings and playing fields occupied under 125 year leases from a local authoﬁty are'

" recognised as a fixed asset in the academy trust balance sheet at fair value.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
govemment or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful coonomic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial

_ activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds; deprecnatlon on

such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued) .

1.7 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

18

1.9

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

'Depreciation is not charged on freehold land and assets under construction. Depreciation is provided

at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their .

- expected useful lives on the following bases: : S -

Long-term leasehold property - over 50 years straight line '
Fumiture and equipment - over 5 years straight line
Computer equipment - over 3 years straight line

A review for 1mpa|rment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recogmsed as lmpamnents Impalrment

losses are recognised in the Statement of financial actmtnes

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepald net of any trade dlscounts due. :

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposnt or similar account.

1.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past

event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for

’the goods or services it must provude

Provrsrons are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economlc benefits and the obllgatlon '

_ can be estimated reliably.

Provisioné are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the ebligation. Where

_the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those .

amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the hablllty The
unwinding of the discount is recogmsed within interest payable and similar charges.

N
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1.

Accounting policfes (continued)

1.11 Financial'instruments. ’

The Academy Trust only. holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments .
measured at amomsed cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial mstruments

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial mstrument and is measured at face value.
Financial Iiabilities - trade credit‘ors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are

measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14 and . Taxation and social security are not included
in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial

- liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
- rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.12 Opefating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of fi nancnal activities on a straight
line basis over the Iease term.

'1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pensiorn
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit -

. schemes

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi- employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the perlod to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retumn .on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtaiiments. They. are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the-scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to

- discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets

and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and.losses.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

"Restricted f‘xed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specnf ic capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions |mposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. - . :

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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2.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and Judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectatlons of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. .

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resultlng accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrymg amounts of
assets and habllmes within the next fi nancual year are discussed below. .

Multi-emplo yer defined benefit pension sch‘eme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Schcmc defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis' using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income:for pensions include the discount rate. Any -
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

» ATangib/e fixed assets

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of £37,131;257 at the
reporting date (see note 12). These assets are stated at their cost less provision for depreciation and
impairment. The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to calculating depreciation for
immaterial assets acquired. For materiat assets such as land and buildings the Academy Trust determines
at acquisition reliable estimates for the useful life of the asset, its residual value and decommissioning
costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the -expected use of the acquired asset and
market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the governors consider whether there are any factors
such as’ technological advancements or changes in market conditions that mdlcate a need to reconsider

. the estimates used

The Academy Trust originally recognised long term leasehold property which now have a carrying value of
£5,464,886 which are subject to Church supplemental agreements. It is the Trustees opinion that this
Church Supplemental Agréement constitutes a long term lease with substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the land and buildings transferring to The Stour Academy Trust and consequently the
value of the {and and buﬂdmgs have been 1ncluded above in long term leasehold property.

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may be impaired the Academy Trust
undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair
value of assets less cost to sell and of their value in use. Wherever possible the estimate of the fair value
of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow model, based upon the Academy Trust's
forecasts for the foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities that the Academy
Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance. .
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolat:on purposes.
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2.

 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

Critical areas of judgment:
Land and buildings

it is the opinion of the Trustees that the Trust exercises control over the long leasehold property subject to .
Church supplemental agreements and therefore the value of land and buildings has been recognised as
an asset of the Trust.

Lease commitments

"The Academy Trust has entered into a rang_e of lease commitments in respect of property, plant and
equipment. The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the:
. governors to consider whether the terms and’ conditions of each lease are such that the Academy Trust

has acquired the risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

Certain employees. participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme with other Academy
Trusts in the region. In the judgement of the governors, the Academy Trust does not have sufficient
information on the plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined
benefit obligation and plan assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution
scheme, see note 22 for further details. . :

_ The plan surplus as at 31 August 2023 was £548,000 (2022: deficit £900,000). A pens1on plan asset is

recognised to the extent that the company: is able to recover the surplus eithér through reduced

contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. In the opinion of the trustees, the academy .

trust will not recover the surplus through reduced contributions and they do not anticipate receiving any
refunds from the plan and therefore the net surplus recognised within the financial statements has been

restricted to £Nil.

' Ihcom‘e from donations and capital grants

. Restricted .
Unrestricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds - funds funds.
2023 2023 " 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
- Donations : ' . 44472 7806,123 7,850,595 16,486
Capital Grants o . 216,187 - 216,187 174,270.

44,472 8,022,310 = 8,066,782 190,756

Total 2022 : . . 16,486 174,270 190,756
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4. Funding for the Academy's educational operations 4

DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other Grants

Universal Infant Free School Meals

A Pupil Premium

‘Teachers Pay and Pension Grant

Other Govérnment grants
Local authority grants

Total 2022 i

5. Other trading activities

Residential trip and visit income
Income from facilities/services

Breakfast/after school club income

Other income

Total 2023

" . Total 2022

Resfricted

- Total

. Total
funds funds - funds-
2023 - 2023 - 2022
£ £ £
9,765,539 9,765,539 8,777,324
767,_852 767,852 573,416
209,492 209,492 . 304,760
1,071,270 1,071,270 969,717
- : - 16,460
11,814,153 y 11,814,153 10,641,677
\ . - .
1,734,608 1,734,608 1,588,362
- 1,734,608 1,734,608 1,588,362
13,548,761 13,548,761 12,230,039
12,230,039 12,230,039
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
123,658 123,658 123,256
48,349 48,349 55,662 .
189,800 189,800 177,589
61,268 61,268 238,967
423,075 423,075 595474
595,474 595,474
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6.  Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educational operations
© Total 2022

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs .

Books, stationary and materials

Other educational supplies & services
Staff development and other staff costs
Agency staff ' v

Total 2022.

Activities

~undertaken Support Total Total

directly costs - funds funds

2023 . 2023 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

10,261,164 4,632,333 14,893,497 - 14,559,436
9,356,786 - 5,202,650 14,559,436

Total Totél

A funds funds

2023 . 2023. 2022

£ £ £

9,015,357 9,015,357 8,213,873

584,098 584,098 _595,953 .

193,264 193,264 ‘ 188,138

99,645 99,645 66,749

368,800 368,800 292,073

10,261,164 10,261,164 9,356,786

9,356,786
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6.  Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

- g ‘ Total Total

. funds funds

2023 2023 2022

£ , £ . £

FRS102 pension ﬁnance costs E ’ - 27,000 27,000 © 99,000
Staff costs . : 1,460,582 1,460,582 2,440,345
Depreciation . © '881,493 - 881,493 . 658634
Maintenance of premises : 264918 264,918 272,859
Cleaning .~ - - .. 273088 273,088 251,559
Premises insurande_ ' : - 88,580 ' . 88,580 89,231
ICT (not capitalised) o 266,864 266,864 . 234,258
Catering costs : ot ‘ 464,760 464,760 381,253
Other occupancy costs . . ‘ - 160,914 160,914 148,457
Security ‘ , : C 4,346 4,346 4,120
water .. . 32,753 32,753 19,370
Energy _ S ' 152,106 . 152,106 129,972
Furniture and equipment (items less than £5,000) ‘ 3,809 - 3,809 2,206
Professional fees ‘ : 138,222 138,222 114,428
Other services and supplies ‘ . _ 412,898 412,898 356,958

| 4632,333 4632333 5202650

i

Total 2022 - - - 5202650 5,202,650

7.  Net ihcohel(ekpenditure)

jN et income/(expenditure) for the year inciudes:

- 2023 - 2022
£ . £
Operating leas:e rentals ' ' : i 31,748 31,805
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets . S S 881,493 .. 658,820
Fees paid to auditors for: - , S .. - '
,  -audit : : . 23,900 20,000
: - other sérvices ’ . ’ ) 4,200 . 9,100
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8.  Staff

. é. Staff costs

Staff costs duiring the year were as follows: o _— ,"

2023, 2022

' S - . £ £
Wages and salaries ' ' . 7,942,008 7,330,931

. Social security costs : , . 730414 669,566

Pension costs : L . , -7 1,803,517 - 2,653,721

, 10,475,939 10,654,218
Agency staff costs S 368,800 292,073

10,844,739 10,946,291 -

_ Staff restructuring costs comprise:

‘o - 2023 2022

L : : £ g

. Redundancy payments ; _ ' ) : _ - 12,199
Severance payments . _ ' ‘ ’ 22,509 ' -

22,509 12,199

b, Severance payments
The Academy Trust paid 1 severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

2023
‘No.

£0-£25000 : . ' S 1

c. Special staff severance payments

Included in staff restructunng costs are specual severance payments totalling £4,600 (2022 £Nil).
Individually, the payment was £4 600 .
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8.

Staff (continued)

. d. Staff inumbers

The average number of personé employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2023 2022

No. : No.
Teachers ' ' R - 125 © 123
Administration and support ' ‘ A 228 206
Managément . : B .5 ‘ 4
356 . 333

- e. Higher paid stéff

The number of employees whose employee benef ts (exclud!ng employer pensxon costs) exceeded
£60,000 was: )

2023 2022

_ » No. . No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 = - | N 3
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 . .- o ' 3 2

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 . T - 1-
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 . : S N
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 ’ : ‘ - 1

In the band £120,001 - £130,000 . . ' , ST _ 1 -

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel -of the Academy Trust. comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total salaries received by key management personne! for
their services to the Academy Trust was £430,056 (2022: £443,934). Employer pension contributions were
a total of £46,305 (2022 £56,256) and employer national insurance contributions were a total of £63,106
(2022: £56,011). .
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9. Central services

A sngnlf icant number of MATs within the sector hold back for central salaries only and thén charge all
services such as safeguarding, accounting and legal on a case by case basis. This is both costly and .
unmanageable/ unpredictable for our schools. In 2017 we introduced a.Hub and Trust Services holdback
to achieve better VFM and to fit-in with our Hub growth collaborative ethos and model. This achieved
greater savings and was a fairer process. All eventuahtles are planned for to provide reassurance and
/peace of mind to the Board .

Currently.in 2022-23 we have dédUc’ted the follpwing holdbacks as agreed in July 2022:

Central Holdback - 6.24%
- Trust Leadership
- Trust CPD
- Marketing resources
© - Trust Flnance HR and Premises departments

Teaching and Learning Holdback - 2.56%
- School improvement personnel

Safeguardmg Holdback - 1.08%
- Safeguarding personnel

- Safeguarding software

- Safeguarding CPD

Trust Services - 0.97% .

- Software both curriculum and non-curriculum

- Speech and language therapy services

- Audit, banking, legal and insurance fees

'Total 11% funded by s¢hool GAG income - this has increased to 11.2% in 2023-24.
The actual amounts charged dunng the year were as follows: - '

2023 2022 - -

. , ] _ £ R
Sturry Church of England Primary School ' , ' 192,351 185,157
Water Meadows Primary School . . 4 - 67,726 ) 57‘,41'4 '

* Lansdowne Primary School - ‘ . 188,157 229,177
Adisham Church of England anary School . - 58,274 54,812
Finberry Primary School . 132,465 114,570

‘Thistle Hill Academy . . - : 165,624 163,247
Richmond Academy ) . . ’ ) 158,437 - 167,000
Chilimgton Green Primary School . , E -7 98,883 100,326

Total - , o 1,061,917  1,071,703.
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10.

11.

12.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other beneﬁts from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

-

2023 2022

) o £ £
Miss R L Howell , Chief Executive Officer and Remuneration . 120,000 - 105,000 -

Accounting Officer ‘ , 125,000 © 110,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totalllng £394 were reimbursed or pald directlyto 1
Trustee (2022 £58 to 1 Trustee). .

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

. . S
in accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £1,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the
Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the Academy Trust's insurance policy.

Tangible fixed assets e,
Long-term _
leasehold Plant and Computer
property . machinery equipment - Total

. £ £ ‘ £ - £
Cost or valuation ‘ ] . . . o
At 1 September 2022 A 32,342,599 340,003 = 809,360 33,491,962
Additions 7,897,694 - 163,803 8,061,497 .
At 31 August 2023 ‘ 40,240,293~ 340,003 . 973,163 41,553,459
Depreciation’ '
At 1 September 2022 ' 2,639,619 255,668 645,423 3,540,710
Charge for the year 664,550 27,596 189,346 881,492
At 31 August 2023 ‘ 3,304,169 283,264 " 834,769 4,422,202
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 - } 36,936,124 . 56,739 138,394 37,131,257
At 31-August 2022 . 29,702,980 . 84,335 .- 163,937 29,951,252
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12. Tangible fxéd assets (continued)

Included in long term |easehold property is Ieasehold land at cost of £5,314,000 (2022 £5,314 000) Whlch
_is not deprecnated . -

13. Debtors
2023 T . 2022
£ £
Due within one year
Trade debtors ~ - ; : S ' 9,140 684
Other debtors : B ' a Ny 44,140 -~ 38,881
Prepayments and accrued income ‘ 306,956 '21 3,049

360,236 253,514

14. . Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

, " 2023 - 2022

: , £ £
Trade creditors . o ‘ , B 7,394 2,003
,Accruals and deferred income . - ' 410,262 317,682

- 417,656 319,685

'2023 2022

. . £ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 - - : 258,985 . 162,429

. Resources deferred during the year ' - . T 324,631 258,985

Amounts released from previpus periods - ‘ (258,985) (162,429)

‘324631 258,985

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds recelved in advance of the 2022f23
fi nanc:al year in respect of free school meals and other grants.
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. 15.  Statement of funds »

Balance at 1

Balance at

September . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
, £ £ £ £ B £
Unrestricted
funds -
Unrestricted . o
revenue fund - 891,143 467,547 (7,282) '(326,136) - 1,025,272
' Resfricted
general funds
Genéral Annual : s o
Grant (GAG) - 580,826 9,765,539 (10,089,500) 286,948 - 543,813
Pupil Premium - 1,071,270 (1,071,270) . - .
Other DfE / o
ESFA grant - 977,344 (977,344) - - -
. Other , '
government .
. grant . - 1,734,608 (1,734,608) - - -
Pension resehig . (900,000) - (132,000) - © 1,032,000 -
(319,174) 13,548,761 (14,00'4,722) 286,948 1,032,000 543,813
- Restricted ﬁxed
asset funds '
Restricted Fixed _ . ' , : .
Asset Fund 29,951,252 7,806,123  (881,493) 255,375 - 37,131,257 -
" DfE/ESFA - : '
capital grants - 216,187 - - (216,187) - -
29,951,252 A 8,022,310 {881,493) 39,188 - 37,131,257 :
Total Restricted : ‘ :
funds - 29,632,078 21,571,071 (14,886,215) = 326,136 1,032,000 37,675,070 ‘
(14,893,497) - 1,032,000 38,700,342

Total funds 30,523,221 22,038,618
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15.

Statement of funds (continued)

The specific tpurposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestncted funds are applied to the general work of the Academy Trust to support actrvrtres |n5|de and ’

) outsrde the curriculum.

GAG represents funds to be used to cover the normal r'unninQ costs‘ of the Academy Trust.

Other DfE/ESFA grants represents grants provided for specific purposes, such as pupil premium which is
used to support dlsadvantaged pupils and assist them in decreasmg the attainment gap between them

and their peers.

'DfE/ESFA capital grants'funds is to provide the Academy Trust with its own capltal money to address

improvements to buildings and other facilities. The balance-on the fund represents unspent capital grant
money to be spent in the first school term of 2023/24 .

3 The Restricted fixed asset fund represents the Ieasehold Iand' and buildings and other assets which were .

donated upon conversion to academy status, the value of ﬁxed assets purchased since conversron
lncludlng deprecratlon to the balance sheet date. .

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.

\
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15. . Statement of funds (continued)

- Comparative information in réspect of the preceding year is as ‘foikjws::

Unrestricted
funds

Unrestricted:
revenue fund

Restricted
Funds

* General Annual
Grant (GAG)

Other DfE /
ESFA grant

_Other
.government
grant

- Pension reserve

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Restricted Fixed
Asset FundA

DfE/ESFA
capital grants

- Total Restricted
funds '

_ Totél funds

Balance at

Balance at
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1 September ‘ , ©* Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ - £ £ £ £

. 494,056 611,960 | - 214:873) - 891,143

- 1,023,623 8,777,324  (9.256,087) 35,966 ; 580,826

- 1,864,353  (1,864,353) - - -
IR 1,588,362 (1,588,362) - - _ -
(6,145,000) - (1,192,000) - - 6,437,000  (900,000)
(5.121,377) 12,230,039 (13,900,802) 35966 6,437,000  (319,174)
30256709 - - (658,634) 353,177 - 29,951,252

- 174270 - (174270) - -
30,256,709 174270  (656,634) - 178,907 . . - 29,951,252
25135332 12,404,309 (14,559,436) 214,873 6,437,000 29,632,078
25,629,388 13,016,269 (14,559,436) ; 6,437,000 30,523,221 -
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15.

Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

Sturry Church of Engl'and Primary Schoot
Water Meadows Primary School
Lansdowne Priméry School

Adisham Church of England Primary School
Finberry Primary School

Thistle Hill Academy

Richmond Academy .

Chiilmingto'n Academy

The Stour Academy Trust

. Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total
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2023 2022

£ £

132,958 © 102,044
4,880 35,082

© 438,111 367,264
145,598 84,201
126,981 90,301
123,311 161,585
229,415 349,396
347,760. 246,081
20,071 36,015
1,569,085 1,471,969
37,131,257 29,951,252
- (900,000)
38,700,342 30,523,221
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15.

For the year ended 31 August 2023

Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows: |

Academy Trust 9,015,357

- Teaching
-and .
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational = excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£ £ s £ £
Sturry Church of
England . L .
Primary School 1,365,004 172,445 180,806 355,375 . 2,073,630 - 1,889,411
- Water Meadows - ' o n
Primary School 621,374 68,182 106,823 155,222 951,601 719,420
_‘Lansdowre . ' : . R ' o
. Primary School 1,400,902 ©= . 144,936 139,462 284,387 1,969,687 1,911,322
Adisham Church ' o ' '
.of England , . ‘
Primary School 377,813 45,141 66,165 106,336 595,455 588,348
Finberry Primary ~ - R ' o '
School - 1,160,081 144,903 164,627 274,960 1,744,571 1,571,485
Thiste Hill . ) A . ‘ ' :
Academy 1,387,782 . 133,863 220,497 - 306,447 2,048,589 © 1,792,576
Richmond . ‘ S
Academy . 1,452,399 179,906 186,874 334,563 © 2,153,742 1,964,641
Chilmington - - .
Primary School 790,460 66,440 131,941 250,878 1,239,719 1,190,052
‘The Stour ~ : . ‘ < o
Academy Trust 458,542 309,766 - - 48,612 327,090 1,235,010 2,273,547 .
1,355,582 1,245,807 2,395,258 14,0.12,004" '13,900;802
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16.

" Total -

Analysis of net assets between funds

" . Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

. Restricted o
. Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 ’ 202'3.
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - S - 37431257 37,131,257
Current assets ' ‘ 1,025,272 961,469 - 1,986,741
Creditors due within one year - . - (417,656) - (417,656) .
Total 1,025,272 543,813 37,131,257 C 38,700,342
Anallysi.s of net assets between funds - prior year
_ _ Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset . Total
- funds funds funds funds -
2022 2022 2022 2022
, £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets ' , - -+ 29,951,252 29,951,252
Current assets 891,143 900,511 ’ - 1,791,654
Creditors due within one year ‘ ' - (319,685)" - (319,685)
Provisions for liabilities and charges : - (800,000} - (900,000)
891,143  (319,174) 29,951,252
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17." Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

[

Net incomé/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of financial

activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation ©

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Décrease/(increase) in debtors -

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Donated assets ' -

Net cash provided by operating activities

18. Cash flows from investing activi‘tiles

;
¢

‘Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities .

~

19.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Total cash and cash eqdivélents
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2023 2022
g £
7,145121  (1,543,167)
881,492 658,820
(203,920)  (174,270)
-132,000 1,192,000
(106,722) 9,113
97,971 64,864
(7,806,123) -

139,819 207,360
2023 2022

£ £

' (255,374)  (353,364)
203,920 174,270
(51;454)  (179,094)

" 2023 2022
£ £
1,626,505 1,538,140

' 1,626,505 1,538,140
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20.

21,

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1
. September At 31
2022 Cash ﬂows August 2023
, o . , £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand o ‘ 1,538,140 88,365 " 1,626,505
1,538,140 88,365 © 1,626,505

Pension commitments ‘ ) A .

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic ‘and related staff; and the Local Government Pension

- Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Kent County Council. Both are multl-

employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022. ' ‘

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pensfon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benef t scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in

-academies. All teachers have the option to opt—out of the TPS following enrolment.

)

~ The TPS is an unfunded scheme to Wthh both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retlrement and other pension

" benefits are pald by publlc funds provided by Parliament.
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21,

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme.

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions' (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Educatlon -on 5 March 2018.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consuitation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23 68% of penslonable pay (mcludnng a 0 08% admlnlstratlon'
' levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
"together with the notional.investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is-used:to determine the notional mvestment return. The current
‘ SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,008,824 (2022 - £964,564).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentatron is on the Teachers Pensnons webS|te
(https:/imww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers- pensrons-valuatuon -report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS.is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme The Academy Trus't has set out above the information available on the scheme.

A Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, wath the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £847,000 (2022 -
£751,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £680,000 (2022 - £597,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 167,000 (2022 - £154,000). The agreed contribution. rates .for future years are
22.5% per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obhgatron relates to the employees of the Academy Trust who were the

‘employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who

were eligible t0, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative -service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Educatron to a guarantee that, in the

" event of academy closure, outstanding.Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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21.  Pension commitments (continued)
Principal actuarial assumptions

2023 2022

% % .
Rate of increase insalaries . ' - 3.85 3.90
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/mﬂatlon o ' " 285 2.90
Discount rate for scheme liabilities - - A - 530 - 420

The current mortalrty assumptlons include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortahty rates. .
The assumed life expectations on retlrement age 65 are:

) : 2023 2022

" Years ~ Years
Retiring today ‘ ! . , ‘
Males S : o 207 210
Females - = . o . ‘ N 232 = 235
Retiring in 20-years - : . h T
- Males’ o ) : . 22 223
Females | | . 248 249
Sensitivity analysis ‘ o ‘ ' ‘ :
N - 2023 2022
, o £000 - £000
‘Discount rate +0.1% S o . (143,000)  (191,000)
Discountrate-0.1% = - _— 148,000 197,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase ' . 158,000 184,000
Mortality assﬁmpﬁon - 1 year decrease C (154,000) (178,000)
Salary rate +0.1% : S 7,000 10,000
. Salaryrate-0.1% o - (7,000) (10,000)
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21.

Perision commitments- (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At31 At31 August
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- August 2023 2022
A £ £
Equities 4,185,000 3,752,000
Gilts ' 39,000 33,000
Corporate bonds 911,000 757,000 .
Cash and.other-liquid assets 69,000 97,000
Absolute return fund - 473,000 412,000
To;al market value of assets ) 6,342,000 - 5,724,000
© The actual return on scheme assets was £-37,000 (2022 - £-69,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as f@lldws:
2023 2022
v £ £
Current service cost (734,000) (1,687,000)
Interest income ' (290,000) (192,000)
Interest cost 263,000 © 93,000
Administrative expenses - (3,000) (3,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities . (764,000) (1,788,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as folloWs: .
2023 2022
A £ £
" At 1 September , ‘ _ 6,624,000 11,239,000
Current service cost . . , ' . . 734,000 1,687,000
"Interest cost , . "290,000 192,000
Employee contributions 167,000 154,000
Actuarial gains (1,905,000) (6,599,000)
Benefits paid (77,000) (49,000)
Liabilities assumed on settlements 211,000 -
. At 31 August " 6,044,000 6,624,000
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21.

22.

23.

- For the year ended 31 August 2023

Pension commitments (continued) =~ - ' .
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of écheme assets were as follows:

2023 - 2022

| o ' £ £
At 1 September , _ 5,724,000 - 5,094,000
-Actuarial losses - ' . (325,000) (162,000) -
Interest income : ' S 263,000 - 93,000 .
Employer contributions : . ‘ 680,000 597,000
* Employee contributions : B 167,000 . 154,000
Benefits paid , ‘ ‘ ‘ © ' (77,000) - (49,000)
Settlement prices received ) A - 163,000 -
Admlmstratlon expenses S o ) (3,000) (3,000)
Asset celhng restrlctlon : . ‘ ' . (548,000) Lo
At 31 August ' | | - | 6,044,000 " 5,724,000

.As set out in note 3, the plan surplus as at 31 August 2023 was £548,000 (2022: Liability £900,000). The

Trustees are not expecting to recover the surplus through reduced contributions and they do not
anticipate receiving any refunds from the plan and therefore the riet surplus recognlsed within the
ﬁnanual statements has been restricted to £Nil.

Operatmg lease commltments

~

' At 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future m|n|mum lease payments under .

non-cancellable operatmg leases as follows:

; L - 2023 - 2022

A . . £ £
Not later than 1 year L . 22,158 31,748
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - ' 3,127 - 57,658

25,285 89,406

Members liab:hty

Each member of the chantable company undertakes to contnbute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be. a
member; such amount as may be required, not exceedlng £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member. : )
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24.

25.

. For the year ended 31 August 2023

Relatedparty transactions

meg to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees bemg drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining théir approval where required, and with the

" Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relatmg to connected and

related party transactions.

During the yearr, Miss J Howell and Miss V-Shrivell, close family of Miss R Howell and Mr T Cullen,
members of Key Management Personnel, were employed by the Academy Trust and renumerated .
£11 894 (2022 £11,673) and £50,136 (2022 £49,637) respectively including pension contributions. Miss R
Howell and Mr T Cullen were not involved in the selection process and did not influence the decision. The
relationships were declare to the Academy Trust and included in their register of business interests.’

During the year, there were transactions of £1 310 (2022: £1 535)‘to Ethos School Improvement Limited,
of which Mr Q Roper (indiviudal acting on behalf of member The Dlocese of Canterbury Academles
Company Ltd) is a dlrector .

Controlling party

The Academy Trust is run by the management team on a day to day basis: Strategi¢ decisions are made
by the Board of Trustees. There is no ultimate controliing party. .
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